2009년 2월

석사학위 논문

Epigallocatechin-3-gallate Inhibits Tumor Growth through the Suppression of HSP70 and HSP90

조선대학교 대학원

치의공학과

Phan Le Cong Huyen Bao Tran

Epigallocatechin-3-gallate Inhibits Tumor Growth through the Suppression of HSP70 and HSP90

2009년 2월 25일

조선대학교 대학원

치의공학과

Phan Le Cong Huyen Bao Tran

Epigallocatechin-3-gallate Inhibits

Tumor Growth through the Suppression of HSP70 and HSP90

지도교수 안상건

이 논문을 치의학 석사학위신청 논문으로

제출함

2008 년 10 월

조선대학교 대학원

치의공학과

Phan Le Cong Huyen Bao Tran

Phan Le Cong Huyen Bao Tran 의 석사학위 논문을 인준함

위원장	조선대학교 교 수	윤정훈	인
위원	조선대학교 교 수	아 ㅎ 비 판	인

2008 년 11 월

조선대학교 대학원

Table of Contents

Table of Contents	i
List of Figures ii	ii
Abstracti	iv
I. Introduction 1	L
II. Materials and Methods	4
1. Cell culture ······ 4	1
2. Cell proliferation assay	4
3. Cell transformation assay ······ 4	4
4. Western blotting ······ 5	ō
5. Luciferase assay ······	5
6. EGCG-Sepharose 4B generation and <i>in vitro</i> EGCG pull-down assay…	6
7. Tumour cell inoculation and EGCG treatment	7
8. Histology and Immunohistochemitry	8
III. Results	9
1. EGCG inhibits cell proliferation of MCF-7 cells	9
2. EGCG inhibits adhesion-independent cell transformation	0
3. EGCG inhibits the expression of HSP70 and HSP90 in MCF-7 cells \cdots 1	. 1
4. Inhibition of HSP70 and HSP90 by EGCG caused by the HSF1/HSF2	
depletion	4
5. Levels of stress damage are increased in EGCG-treated cells 14	4

6. EGCG competes with ATP for binding to HSP70 and HSP90 ATPas				
	domain	17		
	7. EGCG suppresses the tumor growth <i>in vivo</i>	·18		
IV	7. Discussion	24		
V.	. References	28		

List of Figures

Fig. 1. The cytotoxicity effect of EGCG on MCF-7 cells	9
Fig. 2. EGCG inhibited transformation of MCF-7 cells	• 10
Fig. 3. Expression of HSPs after EGCG treatment for 24 h	11
Fig. 4. Effect of EGCG on HSP70 and HSP90 promoter activities in MCF-7 of	cells
	13
Fig. 5. Expression of HSF1 and HSF2 after EGCG treatment for 24 h $\cdots \cdots$	14
Fig. 6. The cytotoxicity effect of EGCG combined with heat shock or H_2O_2 of	n
MCF-7 cells ·····	15
Fig. 7. EGCG suppressed the overexpression of HSP70 and HSP90 which	
induced by heat shock (44 $^{\rm o}\text{C}$ for 1 h) or $H_2O_2(500~\mu\text{M})$	16
Fig. 8. Binding assay of EGCG and HSP70 or HSP90	17
Fig. 9. EGCG competed with ATP for binding to ATPase domain of HSP70	
and HSP90 ·····	·18
Fig. 10. Body weight of mice after EGCG or water injection for 7 days …	19
Fig. 11. Effect of EGCG (10mg/kg) on tumor growth <i>in vivo</i>	20
Fig. 12. Effect of EGCG (10mg/kg) on cell proliferation <i>in vivo</i>	22
Fig. 13. Expression of HSP70 and HSP90 on tumor tissues	23

Abstract

Epigallocatechin-3-gallate Inhibits Tumor Growth through the Suppression of HSP70 and HSP90

Phan Le Cong Huyen Bao Tran Advisor: Prof. Sang-Gun Ahn, PhD Department of Dental Engineering Graduate School of Chosun University

Epigallocatechin-3-gallate (EGCG), a catechin found in green tea, has been recognized as a potential therapeutic agent against human cancer. However, mechanism of cytotoxic effect of EGCG on cancer cells has been still unclear. In this study, we assessed the ability of EGCG to regulation of heat shock response signaling in the breast carcinoma cell. EGCG inhibited cell growth in a dose dependent manner and specifically suppressed the expression of HSP70 and HSP90 but other HSPs were not affected. We also found that EGCG inhibited the transcriptional activity of HSP70 and HSP90 promoter through blocking of HSF1 and HSF2. Interestingly, pretreatment of EGCG (50 or 100 μ M) in cells synergistically decreased the cell viability by heat shock (44 °C for 1 h) or oxidative stress (H₂O₂, 500 μ M for 24 h) compared with untreated cell. In xenograft mouse model, treatment of EGCG (10 mg/kg) also significantly reduce the tumor size through inhibiting the expression of HSP70 and HSP90. Our findings suggested that EGCG was a potent tumor suppressor that targeted HSP70 and HSP90 expression in breast cancer cells.

국문초록

HSP70 와 HSP90 의 억제를 통한 Epigallocatechin-3gallate 의 종양 성장 억제효과

Phan Le Cong Huyen Bao Tran 지도교수: 안상건 치의공학과 조선대학교 대학원

Epigallocatechin-3-gallate (EGCG)는 녹차에서 추출한 catechin성분으로 함암 효과를 가지고 있다. 그러나 EGCG에 의한 암세포 억제 기전은 명확하지 않다. 이 연구에서는 유방암 세포주인 MCF-7 cell에서 EGCG와 Heat Shock response와의 연관성을 조사했다. 그 결과 EGCG는 암세포의 성장을 농도 의존적으로 억제하고 HSP70 와 HSP90를 특이적으로 억제하는 결과를 보였다. 또한 HSP의 전사 인자인 HSF1 와 HSF2를 억제함으로서 HSP70 와 HSP90 의 전사적인 활성화를 억제하였다. 흥미롭게도, EGCG의 전처리는 heat shock (44 °C로 1 시간) 또는 oxidative stress (H₂O₂, 500 µM 로 24 시간)를 처리한 후 암세포의 성장이 상승적으로 억제됨을 확인하였다. 암세포를 이식한 동물모델에서 EGCG (10 mg/kg)의 주사 7 일후 종양성장의 억제와 함께 면역조직화학적 및 weatern blot 결과로 HSP70 와 HSP90 의 억제됨을 보였다. 결론적으로 EGCG는 HSP70 와 HSP90 의 분자기전 및 활성저해기전 억제를 통해 유방암세포의 성장을 억제하는 것으로 생각된다.

I. Introduction

Green tea, a popular beverage consumed worldwide, is known to have a cancer chemopreventive effect against various type of cancers [1]. Catechins are the key components of teas that exert antiproliferative properties. Since green tea is non-toxic and it is effective in a wide range of organs, the worldwide interest in green tea as a cancer preventive agent for humans has been increased.

Epigallocatechin-3-gallate (EGCG), a type of catechins in green tea, has been shown to inhibit cell proliferation [2] and induce apoptosis [3 and 4] in tumour cells. EGCG has been associated with the cellular mechanism including mitogen-activated protein kinases (MAPKs) activation [5], lipooxygenase and cyclooxygenase activities [6], and arrest of the cell cycle [7 and 8] in tumour cells. Gupta et al. reported that oral infusion of green tea inhibited prostate cancer by inhibiting serum insulin-like growth factor-1, restorating of insulinlike growth factor binding protein-3 levels and reducing the proliferating cell nuclear antigen (PCNA) [9]. EGCG administered intraperitoneally (i.p.) and the green tea polyphenol fraction infused orally caused the regression of experimentally induced skin papillomas in mice [10].

Heat shock protein (HSP) was first discovered as a stress protein that are powerfully induced by environmental and physiological stresses in a wide range of species [11 and 12]. The HSPs have been subsequently characterized

as molecular chaperones, proteins which have in common the property of modifying the structures and interactions of other proteins [12, 13 and 14].

Recent studies have shown that HSPs are often found to be overexpressed in a wide range of cancers. It has been increased resistance to apoptosis induced by diverse anticancer agents [15]. Some studies showed that expression of HSP70 and HSP40 are enhanced in gastric tumor tissue, relative to the surrounding normal tissue [16]. Furthermore, overproduction of recombinant HSP70 in MCF-7 cells led to a strong acceleration of cell growth by shortening of G0/G1 phases [17] and depletion of HSP70 led to an apoptosis-like death of a variety of tumor cell types, including human oral carcinoma cells, HSC-2, MCF-7, Molt-4, PC-3, and others [18 and 19]. On the other hand, HSP90 is a molecular chaperone whose association is required for the stability and function of multiple mutated, chimeric and overexpressed signalling proteins that promote cancer cell growth and/or survival. The increase of HSPs in tumors also presents an opportunity for cancer immunotherapy through the innate ability of many HSPs to function as biological adjuvants and to chaperone tumor antigens. Recently, the ATPase domain of HSP90 has been effectively targeted and a very active and unique family of anti-cancer drugs has been produced [20]. On the other hand, it has been revealed HSP90 inhibitors as 17-AAG, 17-DMAG are effective as anti-cancer drug [21]. In general, elevated HSP expression in malignant cells plays a key role in protection from spontaneous apoptosis associated with malignancy as well as

the apoptosis generated by therapy, mechanisms which may underlie the role of HSP in tumor progression and resistance to treatment [22, 23 and 24].

As mentioned above, HSPs are elevated in cancer cells to protect cells from apoptosis. Beside that, EGCG has antiproliferative property and induces apoptosis in cancer cells. It has been reported that EGCG inhibits arylhydrocarbon receptor gene transcription through an indirect mechanism involving binding to HSP90 [25], so whether EGCG could inhibit HSPs activities to induce apoptosis in cancer cells.

Therefore, in this study, we examined the pathway that EGCG inhibited cell proliferation on human breast cancer MCF-7 cells *in vitro* and on xenograft mouse model *in vivo*.

II. Materials and Methods

1. Cell culture

The human breast cancer MCF-7 cells and mouse colon adenocarcinoma cells (CT26) were cultured in a humidified 5 % CO₂ atmosphere at 37 °C, using Dulbecco's modified Eagle's medium (DMEM, Sigma) supplemented with 10 % fetal bovine serum (FBS, Sigma), 100 units/ml of penicillin, and 100 mg/ml of streptomycin (Penicillin- Streptomycin, Gibco).

2. Cell proliferation assay

A total of 3×10^5 MCF-7 cells were cultured in the growth medium in the absence or presence of 10 µM, 50 µM, 100 µM or 200 µM EGCG (Sigma) for 24 h. Each medium was removed and then incubated with 50 µl of MTT solution (5 mg/ml MTT in PBS) for 3 h and then absorbance was determined using an auto reader at 595 nm.

3. Cell transformation assay

MCF-7 cells $(2.4 \times 10^4 \text{ cells/ml})$ were cultured in Basal medium eagle (BME, Sigma) containing 1.25 % bacto agar. EGCG (0, 100 μ M or 200 μ M) was treated into cells. After 10 days incubation, cell transformation was observed.

4. Western blotting

After MCF-7 cells were treated in the absence or the presence of $50 \mu M$, 100 µM or 200 µM EGCG for 24 h, cells were washed with phosphate-buffered saline (PBS, Amresco) and lysed by liquid nitrogen and sonicator. Samples were loaded 40 µg per well and electrophoresed on 10 % or 12 % SDS polyacrylamide gels. The proteins were blotted onto Polyvinylidene Fluoride transfer membranes (PVDF, Bio-Rad). After electroblotting, the membranes were blocked by 5 % skim milk in Tris buffer saline (TBS, 10 mM Tris-HCl, pH 7.4, 150 mM NaCl) at room temperature for 3 h and then incubated with primary antibodies (HSP27, HSP40, HSP60, HSP70, HSP90, HSP110, HSF1, HSF2, β-actin from Santa Cruz Biotechnology) in 5 % milk (1:1000 dilution) at 4 °C overnight. Then, the membranes were washed by Tris buffer saline containing 0.1 % Tween-20 (TTBS) and incubated with secondary antibody (1:2000) in 5 % milk for 1 - 2 h at room temperature, and washed by TTBS again. The bands were visualized using an enhanced chemiluminescence (iNtRON).

5. Luciferase assay

pGL3-HSP70 promoter plasmid or pXP2-HSP90 promoter plasmid was transfected into MCF-7 cells using Fugene 6 reagent (Roche) according to the manufacturer's instructions. After 24 h, cells were shocked by heat at 42 °C for 1 h. Finally, cells were treated in the absence or the presence of EGCG (200 μ M) for 24 h. Luciferase activity were assessed.

6. EGCG-Sepharose 4B generation and *in vitro* EGCG pull-down assay

EGCG was conjugated to cyanogens bromide (CNBr)-activated Sepharose (Sigma). EGCG (2.5 mg) was dissolved in 500 µl of coupling buffer [0.1 M NaHCO₃ and 0.5 M NaCl (pH 6.0)]. CNBr-activated Sepharose was swelled and washed in 1 mM HCl on a sintered glass filter followed by a wash with coupling buffer. CNBr-activated Sepharose beads were added to the EGCG in coupling buffer at a final concentration of 5 mg of EGCG/ml of wet gel. The coupling solution containing EGCG and Sepharose was mixed end over end at $\ 4 \ {\mathbb C}$ overnight. Remaining active groups were blocked for 2 h at room temperature in Tris-HCl (0.1 M, pH 8). EGCG-conjugated Sepharose was washed with three cycles of alternating pH washing buffers [buffer 1: 0.1 M acetate and 0.5 M NaCl (pH 4.0), buffer 2: 0.1 M Tris-HCl and 0.5 M NaCl (pH 8.0)]. EGCGconjugated beads were then equilibrated in binding buffer [0.05 M Tris-HCl and 0.15 M sodium chloride (pH 7.5)]. The control unconjugated CNBractivated Sepharose beads were prepared as described above in the absence of EGCG.

MCF-7 cells were lysed by RIPA buffer (with SDS) on ice for 1 h. Sample was centrifuged at 12000 rpm 5 minutes. Supernatant mixed gently with unconjugated CNBr-activated sepharose 4B or EGCG-sepharose 4B in the

presence or the absence of 1 µM or 10 µM ATP (Amresco) for 3 h at 4 °C. The beads were washed three times with binding buffer. The bound protein was eluted with SDS loading buffer [0.125 M Tris, 4 % SDS (w/v), 20 % glycerol (v/v), 200 mM dithiothreitol, and 0.01 % bromophenol blue (w/v) (pH 6.8)]. The samples were boiled for 5 min, and the bound protein was separated by SDS-PAGE. The protein was transferred to a PVDF membrane (Millipore). HSP70 and HSP90 were detected by immunoblotting using HSP70 or HSP90 monoclonal antibodies (Santa Cruz) followed by secondary antibody.

7. Tumour cell inoculation and EGCG treatment

Six weeks old male BALB/c mice (Samtako, Daejeon, Korea) were used *in vitro* study. Eight mice were inoculated subcutaneously into the right flank with mouse colon carcinoma cells (CT26) (5×10^6 cells/200 µl DMEM per mouse). 4 days later, when tumor appeared, 8 mice were divided into two group. The first group is control (3 mice), the second group is EGCG group (5 mice). Mice were given daily intraperitoneal injections of 10 mg/kg EGCG or water (control). Tumor growth was measured daily by caliper. Tumor volume was calculated as (length x width²)/2 [9].

8. Histology and Immunohistochemitry

Mice were killed by chloroform at the seventh day after EGCG or water injection. The tumours were excised, and sectioned. The tumour sections were frozen at -80 $^{\circ}$ C or fixed in 4 % paraformadehyde.

Tumor was crushed with liquid nitrogen, then incubated with RIPA buffer (added inhibitors as PMSF, aprotinin and sodium orthovanadate) on ice for 1 h. After that centrifuged 12000 rpm 10 minutes at 4 °C. Tranfer supernatant to new tube. The proteins were used for HSP70 and HSP90 immunoblotting.

Immunohistochemical staining for HSP70, HSP90 and proliferating cell nuclear antigen (PCNA) was **done**. Paraformadehyde-fixed and paraffinembedded sections were treated by standard deparaffinization. Briefly, endogenous peroxidases were blocked with 1 % H₂O₂ 10 minutes, slides were washed in PBS, incubated for 1 h with protein-blocking solution (PBS supplemented with 1.5 % normal goat serum or normal horse serum), incubated overnight at 4 °C with primary antibodies directed against HSP70, HSP90 or PCNA. Then the slides were washed by PBS again, incubated for 1 h at room temperature with peroxidase-conjugated secondary antibodies, washed, incubated with ABC reagent, washed by PBS and then incubated with DAB, washed, counterstained with haematoxylin, washed, dehydrated sections, mounted with Universal Mount. PCNA positive cells were counted in 5 random areas under X400 field.

III. Results

1. EGCG inhibits cell proliferation of MCF-7 cells

It has been reported that EGCG inhibits cell proliferation in tumor cells [2]. In this study, we investigated the effect of EGCG on cell viability of MCF-7 cells. Cells were treated with various concentrations of EGCG (0, 10, 50, 100, 200 μM) for 24 h, and then cell viability was measured by MTT assay. As shown in Fig. 1, EGCG induced growth inhibition of MCF-7 cells in a dose dependent manner. The concentration caused 50 % cell death (IC50) was approximately 150 μM.



Figure 1. The cytotoxicity effect of EGCG on MCF-7 cells. The data were presented as the mean \pm SD.

2. EGCG inhibits adhesion-independent cell transformation

We examined the cell transformation after EGCG treatment. We cultured MCF-7 cells in Basal medium eagle containing 1.25 % bacto agar. After 10 days, colony formation was observed using microscopy. As shown in Fig. 2, cells formed many colonies in control. However, in the presence of EGCG, colony formation was inhibited in a dose-dependent manner. These results demonstrated that EGCG suppressed the proliferation of MCF-7 cells.



Figure 2. EGCG inhibited transformation of MCF-7 cells. [A] Images were observed by microscopy, X100. [B] The number of colonies from 9 samples were averaged. Error bars indicate SD.

3. EGCG inhibits the expression of HSP70 and HSP90 in MCF-7 cells

To determine the pathway that anticancer effect of EGCG, we examined the effect of EGCG on the expression of HSPs. MCF-7 cells were treated with EGCG (0, 50, 100, 200 μ M) for 24 h. Cells were harvested and proteins were extracted. The expression of HSPs were detected by western blot. Treatment of cells with EGCG (200 μ M) specifically inhibited the expression of HSP70 and HSP90 while other HSPs were not affected under the same condition (Fig. 3). β - actin was used to confirm the equal amount of proteins loaded in each well.



Figure 3. Expression of HSPs after EGCG treatment for 24 h

Futhermore, we wanted to evaluate whether EGCG can inhibit the transcriptional activities of HSP70 and HSP90. pGL3-HSP70 promoter plasmid or pXP2-HSP90 promoter plasmid was transiently tranfected into MCF-7 cells for 24 h, and then cells were shocked by heat at 42 °C for 1 h, finally were treated with 200 μM EGCG. After EGCG treatment for 24 h, luciferase activity was assayed. Reporter assay showed that heat shock (42 °C for 1 h) induced significantly the transcriptional activities of HSP70 and HSP90, consistent with previous report that HSPs is induced by heat shock [12]. However, in the presence of EGCG (200 µM), the transcriptional activities of HSP70 and HSP90 were suppressed (Fig. 4). These results confirmed that EGCG (200 µM) inhibited activities of HSP70 and HSP90 both of transcriptional activity and protein expression in MCF-7 cells. It suggested that EGCG induced the growth inhibition in MCF-7 cells via inhibiting HSP70 and HSP90.



Figure 4. Effect of EGCG on HSP70 and HSP90 promoter activities in MCF-7 cells. The data were presented as the mean \pm SD.

4. Inhibition of HSP70 and HSP90 by EGCG caused by the HSF1/HSF2 depletion

The inducible HSP expression is regulated by the heat shock transcription factors (HSFs). Therefore, we wanted to determine whether EGCG inhibits the expression of HSFs. As shown in Fig. 5, EGCG (200 µM) decreased significantly HSF1 and HSF2 expression after treatment for 24 h. This suggested that EGCG targeted HSP70 and HSP90 protein via the inhibition of the HSFs pathway in MCF-7 cells.



Figure 5. Expression of HSF1 and HSF2 after EGCG treatment for 24 h.

5. Levels of stress damage are increased in EGCG-treated cells

In order to study the effect of EGCG on cell viability of stress-treated cell, MCF-7 cells were treated with EGCG (50 or 100 μ M) for 24 h before heat shock (44 °C for 1 h) or H₂O₂ (500 μ M for 24 h) and then cell viability was measured by MTT assay. Interestingly, pretreatment of EGCG in cells significantly decreased the cell viability which induced by heat shock or oxidative stress compared with untreated cell (Fig. 6).



Figure 6. The cytotoxicity effect of EGCG combined with heat shock or H_2O_2 on MCF-7 cells. Cell viability was measured by MTT assay. The data were presented as the mean \pm SD.

Next, we determined if EGCG can suppress the overexpression of HSP70 and HSP90 induced by heat shock or oxidative stress. As expect, EGCG decreased significantly the overexpression of HSP70 and HSP90 (Fig. 7). It suggested that EGCG actually had an ability to suppress the expression of HSP70 and HSP90 even these proteins were overexpressed by heat shock or H_2O_2 .



Figure 7. EGCG suppressed the overexpression of HSP70 and HSP90 which induced by heat shock (44 $^{\circ}$ C for 1 h) or H₂O₂ (500 μ M).

6. EGCG competes with ATP for binding to HSP70 and HSP90 ATPase domain

We found that EGCG inhibited the expression of HSP70 and HSP90 in MCF-7 cells, may due to EGCG could bind to these heat shock proteins. To investigate this prediction, we did EGCG-Sepharose 4B pull-down assay. Mixing EGCG-Sepharose 4B and cell total protein extract for 3 h and then did immunoblotting with HSP70 and HSP90 antibodies. In the fraction containing proteins bound with EGCG after pull-down, the band of HSP70 and HSP90 were detected (Fig. 8). It supported that EGCG bound to HSP70 and HSP90.



CNBr-Sepharose 4B EGCG-sepharose 4B

Figure 8. Binding assay of EGCG and HSP70 or HSP90. MCF-7 cells were lyzed by RIPA buffer (with SDS), and then were mixed with CNBr-activatedTM sepharose 4B or EGCG-CNBr activatedTM sepharose 4B, after that beads were washed by RIPA buffer (without SDS) and added with 2X SDS loading buffer. Samples were resolved by western blot with anti-HSP70 and anti-HSP90 bodies. We wanted to know the reason why EGCG inhibited the expression of HSP70 and HSP90. We hypothesized that EGCG might compete with ATP for binding to ATPase domain in HSP70/ HSP90 and inhibit the chaperone activity of these proteins. We revealed that the binding of EGCG and HSP70 or HSP90 was decreased in the presence of ATP in a dose dependent manner (Fig. 9). This result demonstrated that EGCG inhibited the activities of HSP70 and HSP90 by competing with ATP in ATPase domain.



Figure 9. EGCG competed with ATP for binding to ATPase domain of HSP70 and HSP90.

7. EGCG suppresses the tumor growth in vivo

Next, we determined the effect of EGCG on cancer growth in animal model. There were two groups of mice. The group received intraperitoneally (i.p) water injection served as control. EGCG solution (10 mg/kg) was injected intraperitoneally into the second group. All of the animals appeared healthy with no loss of body weight (Fig. 10). Interestingly, treatment of EGCG (10 mg/kg) on BALB/c mice inoculated with mouse colon carcinoma cell (CT26) reduced the tumor size compared with water-injected mice for 7 days (Fig. 11).



Figure 10. Body weight of mice after EGCG or water injection for 7 days. The data were presented as the mean \pm SD.





Figure 11. Effect of EGCG (10mg/kg) on tumor growth *in vivo*. [A] Image of tumor xenograft in mice at the seventh day after injection. [B] Effect of EGCG on tumor volume after injection for 7 days. The data were presented as the mean \pm SD.

At the seventh day after injection, tumors were excised from mice. PCNA (Proliferating Cell Nuclear Antigen) was originally identified as an antigen that is expressed in the nuclei of cells during the DNA synthesis phase of the cell cycle [26]. Therefore, it was used as a marker of proliferating cells. To test the effect of EGCG on cell proliferation in tissue, immunohistochemistry for PCNA was performed. As shown in Fig. 12, the number cells of PCNA positive nuclei in mice treated with EGCG were statistically lower than those in control mice. This result supported that EGCG reduced evidently the cell proliferation in tumors.



Figure 12. Effect of EGCG (10mg/kg) on cell proliferation *in vivo*. [A] Immunohistochemistry staining for PCNA in CT26 xenograft tumor masses, X400. [B] The number of PCNA positive cells in microscopic (X400) fields from 5 samples were averaged. Error bars indicate SD.

Next, to determine whether EGCG suppressed the level of HSP70 and HSP90 in tumor tissues, immunoblotting or immunohistochemistry of HSP70 and HSP90 were carried on. Fig. 13 has shown that expression of HSP70 and HSP90 were suppressed dramatically in tumor tissues which injected with EGCG compared with tissues of control mice. These results showed that EGCG inhibited the proliferation of cancer cells via suppressing HSP70 and HSP90 both *in vitro* and *in vivo*.



Figure 13. Expression of HSP70 and HSP90 on tumor tissues. [A] Immunohistochemistry for HSP70 and HSP90, X400. [B] Suppression of HSP70 and HSP90 expression in tumor tissues caused by EGCG.

IV. Discussion

It has been indicated that EGCG, a predominant compound of green tea, has an ability to suppress cancer development such as stomach cancer [3], prostate cancer [4]. Previous studies observed that EGCG caused cell proliferative inhibition by G1/S phase arrest through down-regulation of cyclin D1, cdk4, cdk6 [27, 28]. However, we observed the antiproliferative effect through arresting cell cycle at G2/M phase (data not shown). It is necessary to investigate more the effect of EGCG on expression of regulating proteins in G2/M phase of cell cycle.

Heat shock proteins have been subsequently characterized as molecular chaperones which have in common the property of modifying the structures and interactions of other proteins [12, 13 and 14]. Level of HSPs become elevated in many cancers, HSPs were considered as target for cancer drug development. In the present study, using western blot and reporter assay, we showed evidences that EGCG repressed the cell growth through inhibiting HSP70 and HSP90 expression (Fig. 3 and 4).

It has been reported that HSFs bind to HSPs promoter, and modulate their expression. The HSF gene family includes heat shock transcription factor 1 (HSF1), the molecular coordinator of the heat shock response, as well as two less well-characterized genes, heat shock transcription factor 2 (HSF2) and heat shock transcription factor 4 (HSF4) [29, 30, and 31]. In normal condition, HSF presents in the cytoplasm and the nucleus in a monomeric form that has no DNA binding activity through its interactions with HSPs. In response to environmental and physiological stresses, the monomeric HSFs combine into trimers and accumulate within the nucleus. In the nucleus, the trimers bind to the heat shock elements (HSE), that is specific DNA sequences in the heat shock gene promoters. When attached to DNA, HSF will be phosphorylated. The transcriptional activation of the heat shock genes leads to elevated levels of HSPs [32]. This study examined the effect of EGCG on HSFs expression. We demonstrated that the level of HSF1 and HSF2 were reduced by EGCG treatment after 24 h (Fig. 5). It suggested that EGCG suppressed the expression of HSP70 and HSP90 *via* the inhibition of the HSFs pathway. Studies for HSFs activation after EGCG treatment as HSF phosphorylation, DNA binding activity, HSF trimerization or HSF localization will be further investigated.

Next, we observed the effect of combined treatment with EGCG and heat shock or oxidative stress (H_2O_2) on the cell growth using MTT assay. Pretreatment of EGCG strongly inhibited the cell growth compared with heat shock or H_2O_2 treatment alone (Fig. 6). In immunoblotting assay, heat shock (44 °C for 1 h) or oxidative stress stimulated the expression of HSP70 and HSP90, but EGCG (200 µM) suppressed the expression of HSP70 and HSP90 induced by heat shock or H_2O_2 (Fig. 7). We concluded that EGCG inhibited the proliferation of MCF-7 cells, and EGCG combined with heat shock or oxidative

stress strengthened the effects. EGCG conbined with heat shock or oxidative stress may enhance the sensitivity of stimuli to tumor.

We also observed EGCG bind to HSP70 and HSP90 using CNBr-sepharose pull down assay (Fig. 8). Futhermore, we wanted to test the pathway that EGCG inhibited the activities of HSP70 and HSP90. The chaperone activity of the HSPs is controlled by a reaction cycle of ATP binding, hydrolysis and nucleotide exchange to mediate a series of rapid association-dissociation cycles between the HSP and its target polypeptide [33, 34 and 35]. We hypothesized that EGCG may compete with ATP for binding to ATPase domain in HSP70 / HSP90 and inhibit the chaperone activity of these proteins. As expect, we showed evidence that EGCG competed with ATP in HSP70/HSP90 ATPase domain (Fig. 9), offering an opportunity to propose mechanisms which may contribute, at least partially, to explain the wellrecognized anti-apoptotic effect of EGCG in cancer cells.

Like *in vitro* experiment, we investigated whether EGCG suppressed the cancer cell growth *in vivo via* the inhibition of HSP70 and HSP90. First, PCNA staining indicated that EGCG repressed significantly the cell proliferation in tissues which were treated with EGCG (10 mg/kg) compared with control tissues (Fig. 11). Then, by western blot or immunohistochemistry also displayed that the expression of HSP70 and HSP90 were suppressed in EGCG-treated tumor tissues compared with control tissues (Fig. 12).

In conclusion, our results indicated that EGCG inhibited cancer growth through the suppression of HSP70 and HSP90 both of *in vitro* and *in vivo*. This observation showed that EGCG may a potential chemopreventive agent against tumors.

V. References

1. Yang CS, Chung JY, Yang G, Chhabra SK and Lee MJ 2000. Tea and tea polyphenols in cancer prevention. J. Nutr. 130: 472S - 478S.

2. Asano Y, Okamura S, Ogo T, Eto T, Otsuka T and Niho Y. 1997. Effect of (-)-epigallocatechin gallate on leukemic blast cells from patients with acute myeloblastic leukemia. Life Sci. 60: 135–142.

3. Hibasami H, Komiya T, Achiwa Y, Ohnishi K, Kojima T, Nakanishi K, Akashi K and Hara Y. 1998. Induction of apoptosis in human stomach cancer cells by green tea catechins. Oncol Rep. 5: 527–529.

4. Paschka AG, Butler R and Young CY. 1998. Induction of apoptosis in prostate cancer cell lines by the green tea component, (-)-epigallocatechin-3-gallate. Cancer Letters 130: 1-7.

5. Ahn HY, Hadizadeh KR, Seul C, Yun YP, Vetter H and Sachinidis A. 1999. Epigallocathechin-3 gallate selectively inhibits the PDGF-BB-induced intracellular signaling transduction pathway in vascular smooth muscle cells and inhibits transformation of sis-transfected NIH 3T3 fibroblasts and human glioblastoma cells (A172). Mol Biol Cell 10: 1093-1104.

6. Stoner GD and Mukhtar H. 1995. Polyphenols as cancer chemopreventive agents. J Cell Biochem. Suppl. 22: 169–180.

7. Ahmad N, Feyes DK, Nieminen AL, Agarwal R and Mukhtar H. 1997. Green tea constituent epigallocatechin-3-gallate and induction of apoptosis and cell cycle arrest in human carcinoma cells. J Natl Cancer Inst. 89: 1881–1886.

8. Fujiki H, Suganuma M, Okabe S, Sueoka N, Komori A, Sueoka E, Kozu T, Tada Y, Suga K, Imai K and Nakachi K. 1998. Cancer inhibition by green tea. Mutat Res. 402: 307-310.

9. Gupta S, Hastak K, Ahamad N, Lewin JS, Mukhtar H. 2001. The inhibition of prostate carcinogenesis in TRAMP mice by oral infusion of green tea polyphenols. Proc Nat Acad Sci. 98 (18): 10350-10355.

10. Wang ZY, Huang MT, Lou YR, Xie JG, Reuhl KR, Newmark HL, Ho CT, Yang CS and Conney AH. 1994. Inhibitory effects of black tea, green tea, decaffeinated black tea, and decaffeinated green tea on ultraviolet B lightinduced skin carcinogenesis in 7,12-dimethylbenz (a) anthracene-initiated SKH-1 mice. Cancer Res. 54: 3428-3435.

11. Lindquist S, Craig EA. 1988. The heat shock proteins. Ann Rev Genet. 22: 631-637.

12. Georgopolis C, Welch WJ. 1993. Role of the major heat shock proteins as molecular chaperones. Ann Rev Cell Biol. 9: 601-634.

13. Gething MJ, Sambrook J. 1992. Protein folding in the cell. Nature 355: 33–45.

14. Freeman BC, Yamamoto KR. 2002. Disassembly of transcriptional regulatory complexes by molecular chaperones. Science 296: 2232–2235.

15. Blagosklonny MV. 2001. Role of the heat shock response and molecular chaperones in oncogenesis and cell death. J Natl Cancer Inst. 93: 239–240.

16. Hajime Isomoto, Mikio Oka, Yoshitsugu Yano, Yusei Kanazawa, Hiroshi Soda, Ryusuke Terada, Toru Yasutake, Toshiyuki Nakayama, Saburo Shikuwa, Fuminao Takeshima, Heiichiro Udono, Ikuo Murata, Kenzo Ohtsuka, Shigeru Kohno. 2003. Expression of heat shock protein (Hsp) 70 and Hsp 40 in gastric cancer. Cancer Letters 198: 219-228.

17. Barnes JA et al. 2001. Expression of inducible Hsp70 enhances the proliferation of MCF-7 breast cancer cells and protects against the cytotoxic effects of hyperthermia. Cell Stress Chaperones 6: 316-325.

18. Kaur J, Ralhan R. 2000. Induction of apoptosis by abrogation of HSP70 expression in human oral cancer cells. Int. J. Cancer 85: 1–5.

19. Wei YQ et al. 1995. Inhibition of proliferation and induction of apoptosis by abrogation of heat-shock protein (Hsp) 70 expression in tumor cells. Cancer Immunol. Immunother 40: 73-78.

20. Workman P. 2004. Altered states: selectively drugging the Hsp90 cancer chaperone. Trends Mol Med. 10: 47–51.

21. Xiao Li, Xiang Yi, Douglas M. 2006. Effectiveness of Hsp90 Inhibitors as Anti-Cancer Drugs. Medicinal Chemistry 7: 1137-1143.

22. Nylandsted J, Rohde M, Brand K, Bastholm L, Elling F, Jaattela M. 2000. Selective depletion of heat shock protein 70 (Hsp70) activates a tumor-specific death program that is independent of caspases and bypasses Bcl-2. Proc Natl Acad Sci USA 97: 7871-7876.

23. Ciocca DR, Rozados VR, Cuello-Carrio'n FD, Gervasoni SI, Matar P, Scharovsky OG. 2003. Heat shock proteins 25 and 70 in rodent tumors treated with doxorubicin and lovastatin. Cell Stress Chaperones 8: 26-36.

24. Gyrd-Hansen M, Nylandsted J, Jaattela M. 2004. Heat shock protein 70 promotes cancer cell viability by safeguarding lysosomal integrity Cell Cycle 3: 1484 -1485.

25. Christine M Palermo, Claire A Westlake, and Thomas A Gasiewicz. 2005. Epigallocatechin Gallate Inhibits Aryl Hydrocarbon Receptor Gene Transcription through an Indirect Mechanism Involving Binding to a 90 kDa Heat Shock Protein. Biochemistry 44: 5041-5052.

26. Leonardi E, Girlando S, Serio G, Mauri FA, Perrone G, Scampini S, Dalla Palma P, Barbareschi M. 1992. PCNA and Ki67 expression in breast carcinoma: correlations with clinical and biological variables. J. Clin. Pathol. 45 (5): 416–9. 27. Guang Peng, Michael J Wargovich, Dan A Dixon. 2006. Anti-proliferative effects of green tea polyphenol EGCG on Ha-Ras-induced transformation of intestinal epithelial cells. Cancer Letters 238: 260–270.

28. Chen JJ, Ye ZQ, Koo MWL. 2004. Growth inhibition and cell cycle arrest effects of epigallocatechin gallate in the NBT-II bladder tumour cell line. Bju, International 93: 1082 - 1086.

29. Rabindran SK, Gioorgi G, Clos J, Wu C. 1991. Molecular cloning and expression of a human heat shock factor, HSF1. Proc, Natl, Acad, Sci, USA 88: 6906-6910.

30. Schuetz TJ, Gallo GJ, Sheldon L, Tempst P, Kingston RE. 1991. Isolation of a cDNA for HSF2; evidence for two heat shock factors in humans. Proc, Natl, Acad, Sci, USA 88: 6910-6915.

31. Nakai A, Tanabe M, Kawazoe Y, Inazawa J, Morimoto RI, Nagata K. 1997. HSF4, anew member of the human heat shock factor family which lacks properties of a transcriptional activator. Mol, Cell, Biol. 17: 469-481.

32. Sarge KD, Zimarino V, Holm K, Wu C and Morimoto RI. 1991. Cloning and characterization of two mouse heat shock with distinct inducible and DNA-binding activity. Genes Dev. 5: 1902–1911.

33. Buchberger A, Theyssen H, Schroder H, McCarty JS, Virgallita G, Milkereit P, Reinstein J and Bukau B. 1995. Nucleotide-induced conformational changes in the ATPase and substrate binding domains of the DnaK chaperone provide evidence for interdomain communication. J. Biol. Chem. 270: 16903-16910.

34. McCarty JS, Buchberger A, Reinstein J and Bukau B. 1995. The role of ATP in the functional cycle of the DnaK chaperone system. J. Mol. Biol. 249: 126-137.

35. Rudiger S, Buchberger A and Bukau B. 1997. Interaction of Hsp70 chaperones with substrates. Nat. Struct. Biol. 4: 342-349.

저작물 이용 허락서

학 과	치의공학과	학 번	20077718	과정	석사			
성 명	한글: 판레콩휴엔바오트란 영문: Phan Le Cong Huyen Bao Tran							
주소	광주광역시 동구 서석동 375 조선대학교 치과대학 구강병리학교실							
연락처	E-MAIL: plbtran1972@gmail.com							
	한글 : HSP70 와 HSP90 의 억제를 통한 Epigallocatechin-3-gallate 의 종양 성장 억제효과							
논문제목	영문: Epigallocatechin-3-gallate Inhibits Tumor Growth through the Suppression of HSP70 and HSP90.							

- 다 음 -

 저작물의 DB 구축 및 인터넷을 포함한 정보통신망에의 공개를 위한 저작물의 복제, 기억장치에의 저장, 전송 등을 허락함

2. 위의 목적을 위하여 필요한 범위 내에서의 편집 · 형식상의 변경을 허락함.

다만, 저작물의 내용변경은 금지함.

3. 배포·전송된 저작물의 영리적 목적을 위한 복제, 저장, 전송 등은 금지함.

 저작물에 대한 이용기간은 5 년으로 하고, 기간종료 3 개월 이내에 별도의 의사표시가 없을 경우에는 저작물의 이용기간을 계속 연장함.

 해당 저작물의 저작권을 타인에게 양도하거나 또는 출판을 허락을 하였을 경우에는 1 개월 이내에 대학에 이를 통보함.

 조선대학교는 저작물의 이용허락 이후 해당 저작물로 인하여 발생하는 타인에 의한 권리 침해에 대하여 일체의 법적 책임을 지지 않음

7. 소속대학의 협정기관에 저작물의 제공 및 인터넷 등 정보통신망을 이용한 저작물의 전송·출력을 허락함.

2009 년 2 월

저작자: Phan Le Cong Huyen Bao Tran (서명 또는 인)

조선대학교 총장 귀하

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I would like to thank Prof. Sang-Gun Ahn, my major advisor, for always believing in me and guiding me, and supporting me the best things throughout my Master's program. I also would like to thank Prof. Jung-Hoon Yoon for encouraging, guiding me on this project.

I wish to thank all my labmates (Seong-Min Kwon, Yeon-Hee Moon and Ji-Hye Yoon) in Oral Pathology Lab for their help in my life and study from my first day in Korea.

I am specially thankful to all my Korean and Vietnamese friends, who are friendly and always ready to help me during my time in Korea.

Finally, I would like to express my heartfelt thanks to my family for their love and encouragement!